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12th February 2021
Deregulation Taskforce

Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet

P.O. Box 6500

CANBERRA  A.C.T.   2600

Dear Sir/Madam,

Re: Response to Automatic Mutual Recognition of Occupational Registrations

On behalf of the Australian Institute of Conveyancers (Vic Div) (AICVic), I wish to comment on the draft legislation to introduce a uniform scheme for the automatic mutual recognition of occupational registrations i.e. Automatic Deemed Registration (ADR).  

AICVic is concerned at this new proposal and, whilst we do not oppose the objective, the framing of any legislation needs to take into consideration the fact that just because some occupations in different jurisdictions share the same name or title, it does not necessarily follow that they are the same occupation.

For example, Licensed Conveyancers in Victoria and New South Wales, under their respective licensing laws, are entitled to engage in legal practice and provide legal advice.   Licensed Conveyancers or Settlements Agents in other jurisdictions are not in an equivalent situation, i.e. they are either prohibited from engaging in legal practice and from giving legal advice, or are not qualified or authorized to do so, and therefore are not the same occupation.

It is the view of AICVic that only Victorian and New South Wales Licensed Conveyancers would qualify as the same occupation and, if the legislation goes ahead in its current form, they should be the only jurisdictions which should fall within any ‘automatic’ registration.

2.

Licensed Conveyancers exist in all jurisdictions in Australia, except for Queensland and the Australian Capital Territory.   Licensed Conveyancers are a well respected  and competent profession that handle a substantial proportion of property transactions in those jurisdictions where they are licensed or registered.    They are educated, trained and experienced and compete on an equal footing with lawyers in undertaking conveyancing work.      
In fact, various courts have determined that the competence, high standards and duty of care required of a solicitor in the area of law in which they practice, also applies to Licensed Conveyancers undertaking conveyancing.

I note that one of the key elements of the Bill include :

“A registered person will not be required to pay extra fees or meet any additional requirements for the issue or renewal of a registration to undertake permitted activities in the second state.   The person will have to meet requirements relating to insurance, fidelity funds, trust accounts or the like …..”

There are number of problems with this proposal :

· The practice of conveyancing differs significantly from State to State.  The property laws all differ, as do the practices and procedures.      Any ADR should require that a comprehensive training course is undertaken in order for the licensee seeking registration in a second State to be at least competent to complete a conveyancing transaction.
· Some may argue that because the States of NSW, Victoria, S.A. and W.A. have made it mandatory for all settlements to take place through an electronic system (i.e. PEXA).   It must be remembered that the settlement component is only the final part of the whole conveyancing transaction and comes at the end of what can be a complicated process.
3.

· The fact that a registered person will not be required to pay extra licensing fees is completely unfair.       Licensing fees differ significantly   across jurisdictions.   In Victoria an individual Licensee currently pays  $1,156.70  p.a.   If they also operate under a company structure, they also pay $1,349.60 p.a. – a total of  $2,506.30.    No other jurisdiction pays fees at the same level.     This is clearly unfair.   Licensed Conveyancers could use the scheme to operate in the jurisdiction where fees are the lowest.
· The issue of Professional Indemnity Insurance is of great concern.    Some jurisdictions have a Master Policy in place, other do not.       How would ADR work in relation to P.I. Insurance.      Only that there is a reference to it in the discussion paper, the question has not been addressed.

· Likewise Fidelity Funds.    These are set up in each separate jurisdiction to deal with defalcations.      They are funded by the interest earned on Trust Accounts run by Licensees.      This question has not been addressed.
· Trust Accounts.   Again this issue has not been addressed.

· Continuing Professional Development (CPD) is mandatory in some jurisdictions but not others.     Under the scheme a second State Regulator will not have the ability to impose any additional conditions on an ADR.

From the consumer’s point of view, they should have confidence when dealing with a Licensed Conveyancer that all the regulation behind their licence is transparent, robust and easy to understand.     The comment in the consultation paper  that …’consumers will be able to verify an individual’s authority to provide a service by looking at publicly available information about an individual’s home state registration and by contacting the home state regulator.” is unworkable.    It would be a nightmare for a consumer to have to verify where a conveyancer is registered, let along contact the appropriate regulator.

4.

In light of the difficulties outlined above and the anomalies between jurisdictions, AICVic will be urging the Victorian Minister to publicly declare Licensed Conveyancers exempt from an ADR because of the significant risk to the consumer and the watering down of the standards of the profession.

Yours faithfully,
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Jill Ludwell

Chief Executive Officer
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